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NIPPON STEEL & SUMIKIN BUSSAN CORPORATION and its Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheet

March 31, 2015

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
ASSETS 2015 2014 2015
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents (NOTE 11) .....c.cceieieriiirrrrs e ¥ 27,359 ¥ 26027 $ 227,669
Receivables (Note 11):
TrAAE NOTES ...ttt e e e b e st e aeebesne e eaeebenneneas 49,387 47,903 410,976
Trade accounts (NOTES 12 @N0 13) c.ceeiiereeeeeeecccc e 335,224 322,890 2,789,581
Unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies 15,240 15,855 126,820
0] 11 TR 148 393 1,231
Allowance for doubtful reCeIVADIES ............cccucueueuerercccccree e (1,654) (1,968) (13,763)
INVENTOTIES (NOTE 4) ...ttt 106,275 89,457 884,372
AQVANCES 10 SUPPIIEIS....vcveeieeiirieeieste ettt b e b e ne e enen 7,999 3,712 66,564
Deferred tax aSSES (NOTE T0) .....ceirerirererirririri et 3,837 3,540 31,929
Prepaid expenses and other current assets.... 6,935 9,034 57,709
TOtal CUITENT @SSELS.....ceivevieeete et enns 550,754 516,847 4,583,123
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Notes 5 and 7):
2 0o TSRS 23,005 22,659 191,437
BUIlAINGS AN STUCTUIES .......eceeeeeeeee ettt 41,922 36,184 348,855
Machinery and equipment 33,739 27,271 280,760
FUPNITUFE @NA FIXEUMES ....cveveeceeeee ettt b e st sb e st e s b e enis 9,177 8,674 76,366
LBASE @SSELS ....veveueierireriesiesieteeste sttt ettt bRt et et ne et R et ne e nran 2,810 2,288 23,383
CONSEIUCTION TN PIOGIESS.......veeeieteieieieieieee ettt bbbttt 2,197 2,215 18,282
TOTAL et 112,852 99,293 939,102
Accumulated dEPreCiation ............covveereereirereieerere e (49,843) (42,990) (414,770)
Net property, plant and eqQUIPMENT ........c.ceoviieieeecece e e 63,009 56,303 524,332
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS:
Investment securities (NOtES 3, 7 aNd 11) ....c.covvveeerceceeeereere e 35,388 30,055 294,482
Investments in and advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries
and associated companies (NOTE 17) ... 30,588 27,897 254,539
LONG-TEIM H0NS ...ttt 156 249 1,298
GOOTAWIIL (NOEE B) ...ttt s s s 189 139 1,572
Deferred tax aSSES (NOTE 10) ..ot s 742 553 6,174
L0 1R L= L] (R 16,600 14,428 138,137
Allowance for doubtful reCeiVabIES ...........ccoueeirireceire e (4,529) (4,169) (37,688)
Total investments and Other @SSEtS ..........covvvrreece e 79,135 69,154 658,525
TOTAL ettt a e et ne et e s ¥ 692,899 ¥ 642304 $ 5,765,989
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NIPPON STEEL & SUMIKIN BUSSAN CORPORATION and its Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheet

March 31, 2015

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2015 2014 2015
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Short-term borrowings (NOtes 7, 11 @nd 12) ... ¥ 159,943 ¥ 154,329 $ 1,330,972
Current portion of long-term debt (Notes 7, 11 and 12)........ccovvvevevrccivrece e 13,110 12,495 109,095
Payables (Note 11):
Trade notes (Note12) 52,412 53,902 436,148
Trade accounts (Notes 12 and 13) 193,689 197,867 1,611,791
Unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies 3,777 2,249 31,430
0] 11 TR 1,529 1,765 12,723
AAVANCES TTOM CUSTOMETS .....vevevceeieeteee ettt b e sa e nenens 11,542 4,490 96,047
Income taxes payable (NOTE 10).......ccoueerereiircerreer e 5,756 5,210 47,898
ACCTUBH BXPEINSES .....euevvieieieisieie sttt ettt b et b et b et b et b bt b et e bt enen 8,563 8,668 71,257
Asset retirement obligations - 2 -
Deferred tax liabilities (NOTE 10).....cccoeriririririririsiree e 60 56 499
(013 PR 11,632 8,753 96,796
Total current HADIIIES ..........ccveeeeeciececee e s 462,018 449,790 3,844,703
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt (NOtES 7, 11 @N0 12) ....cuovireeiciieecereeceee e 34,785 23,723 289,464
Liability for retirement benefits (NOE 8)........couourerurerireeee e 2,163 3,222 17,999
Asset retirement 0DIGALIONS .......c.covvvereiiicec e 434 240 3,611
Deferred tax liabilitieS (NOTE 10)......cocoererererereririririeerie et 5,097 2,836 42,414
DN bbbt 4,706 4,935 39,161
Total long-term li@bilitieS.........cvevruereeericcere e 47,187 34,959 392,668
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Note 14)
EQUITY (Notes 9 and 15):
Common stock-authorized, 500,000,000 shares; issued,
309,578,001 shares in 2015 and 309,578,001 shares in 2014..........cccoveeerrrrenrrenrreneeeerenes 12,335 12,335 102,646
CAPITAL SUIPIUS ...ttt sttt be e b se b e s e besesnnbene e ebennes 50,645 50,644 421,444
REtAINEA BAMINGS.....c.coviveeiireriertees ettt be e s ae e e s et enenean 88,668 74,398 737,854
Treasury stock - at cost, 408,443 shares in 2015 and 377,290 shares in 2014 ..........cccccvevrvenee (108) (95) (898)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (l0ss):
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities (Note 3) 5,845 2,572 48,639
Deferred loss on derivatives under hedge acCcounting...........cccocoeeeeerernerenereriserisiseieeeeeenes (554) (428) (4,610)
Foreign currency translation adjustments ...........cccccueeeecciicieiieer s 9,157 3,472 76,200
Defined retirement DENEfit PIANS .........c.coevieciiiccc s 786 (290) 6,540
TOTAL et 166,774 142,609 1,387,817
MINOFIY INTEIESTS......ecvieeeeeee e een 16,918 14,945 140,783
Total equity .... 183,693 157,554 1,528,609
TOTAL ettt ettt s st b s s e b s s e st e s ¥ 692,899 ¥ 642,304 $ 5,765,989

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NIPPON STEEL & SUMIKIN BUSSAN CORPORATION and its Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Income

March 31, 2015

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
2015 2014 2015
NET SALES (NOE 13) ...eeeeeeireerceeieiriseeesietsesesesses s essas s ssssss s ssss s sssssessssesssssnsssesssnsnsnenen ¥ 2,104,606 ¥ 1,443,843 $17,513,572
COST OF SALES (NOES 4 AN 13) ...vrvieiieirireeieieisereeieie e 1,977,338 1,349,555 16,454,506
LT EST 3 o) T 127,268 94,287 1,059,066
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (Notes 6 and 8)...........ccceueurereneecienreciceeinenes 98,598 73,326 820,487
OPErating INCOME..........cucueueuereecrcicieee ettt e b e b bbbt bebenenenan 28,669 20,961 238,570
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES):
Interest and divideNd INCOME..........ccvoiriririrrrrrr s 1,322 935 11,001
INEEIEST BXPENSE ... vttt s et e s se et ne et e ne e s ene e een (2,630) (1,881) (21,885)
PUFCHASE GISCOUNT ........cveueeieeieicieee ettt bbb ennas 773 480 6,432
Gain on sales of investment securities-net (Note 3)... 70 65 582
Loss on sales of investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries
and asSOCIAtEA COMPANMIES .........eveueueueueueieeeeeeere ettt sttt eses (143) (32) (1,189)
Loss on devaluation of investment securities (NOTE 3)..........ccceiiinnnnnnnrsree e (234) (397) (1,947)
Impairment losses Of fiXed aSSELS (NOTE 5).....vovvvrerurericericeceece e (1,709) (634) (14,221)
Equity in earnings of an unconsolidated subsidiary and associated companies.............ccceeueveeee. 990 755 8,238
Gain 0N ChaNQe iN EQUILY .....c.eveveveeerceceecccccce e 98 11 815
Gain on negative goodwill 125 11,731 1,040
LOSS 0N CNANGE INM BAUILY ...c.ervvenirieieirieieerieie ettt - (64) -
Loss on liquidation of subsidiaries and affiliates ............ccccceeeiiennnnnnnrr e - (342) -
OFfiCE traNSTEr BXPENSES ......eeeeeeceeeeecte ettt - (1,170) -
OHNBI-NBL ... bbb bbbt e b s e bene et ae e b ne s 1,404 669 11,683
Other INCOME = NBL......eeeeceeeeecee ettt s be e nas 67 10,126 557
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND MINORITY INTERESTS ......c.ovvreereeerireenceneniresessesesesesensssenenens 28,736 31,087 239,127
INCOME TAXES (Note 10):
L0 =T o | OO 10,411 8,010 86,635
D53 o TR STTSTTTTR (121) (333) (1,006)
TOTAl INCOME TAXES ...veveeeerecteteeee ettt sttt et seeae b st ae b saeneeais 10,290 7,677 85,628
NET INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS .....cocviriiiereirereeieieiriseeieiei st sessesesens 18,446 23,410 153,499
MINORITY INTERESTS IN NET INCOME 1,012 641 8,421
NET INCOIME.......ccuteiieicieteirereee ettt ¥ 17,434 ¥ 22,768 $ 145,077
PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK (Note 2.r): Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
BaSIC NELINCOME ...t ¥ 56.4 ¥ 941 $ 0.47
Cash dividends applicable 0 the YEar ... 12.0 11.0 0.10

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NIPPON STEEL & SUMIKIN BUSSAN CORPORATION and its Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

March 31, 2015
Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
2015 2014 2015
NET INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS .......ceovirereereeirreeeseeisiseeesesiseseessesssesesessss e sesssssnsnenes ¥ 18,446 ¥ 23,410 $ 153,499
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Note 15):
Unrealized gain (l0ss) on available-for-sale SECUNLIES ...........overvrveueececiciecceeee s 3,260 (236) 27,128
Deferred loss on derivatives under hedge acCounting ............cccoceeoerenennernnnnrnses e (123) (442) (1,023)
Foreign currency translation adjustments ..........ccccovviveicin s 5,029 3,475 41,849
Defined retirement DENEFit PIANS .......ccvcveiriciecc e 1,076 - 8,953
Share of other comprehensive income in an
unconsolidated subsidiary and associated COMPANIES ...........coceeerreeerineienneiensee e 2,189 2,114 18,215
Total other cCOmpPrenenSive iNCOME ..........ccuceiieiceiriee e ¥ 11,432 ¥ 4,911 $ 95,131
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ..........c.covtiiimiieieiririncieieisineeieie et ssssses s sesnenes ¥ 29,879 ¥ 28,321 $ 248,639
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
OWNErS OF the PAIENT ..o e 27,336 26,935 227,477
MINOFITY INTEIESTS. ... vttt sa e a s s s ees 2,542 1,386 21,153

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NIPPON STEEL & SUMIKIN BUSSAN CORPORATION and its Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

March 31, 2015

Thousands Millions of Yen
Number of
Common Stk el Supls Famings
Outstanding
BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2013 ...ttt 174,789 ¥ 12,335 ¥ 7,084 ¥ 54,576
NELINCOME. ...ttt sttt bbb ae st ebesaebeseebe st e s benis 22,768
Cash dividends, ¥12 PEF SAIE ........ccveeeeerrririerreesseseseeseessese s sssssessssesssssssesnnns (2,938)
Effect of change in ownership ratio of an associated company .............cccccoveenirinienenne 8)
PUrChase Of treaSUNY STOCK ..........vvveereerrrerieeeiesrseeeee st snsesesnns (84)
DiSpoSal Of treaSUNY SLOCK ........cvveiureeeeiriririeisieisir ettt 5 0
Change in equity in an associated company accounted for
by equity Method-treasury SLOCK...........cocvecerurrrinieeesreee e 8
INCIEASE DY MEIGET ...ttt 134,481 43,559
Net change in the YEAr ........c.cceiieccce e
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2014 (APRIL 1, 2014, as previously reported ) ...........ccoveveeeneeenee 309,200 12,335 50,644 74,398
Cumulative effect of accounting ChaNGE ............cceurerieirieirrcee e 583
BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2014 (@S restated) .........coeurierieererereseesees e 309,200 12,335 50,644 74,982
NELINCOME. ...ttt sttt bbb ae st ebesaebeseebe st e s benis 17,434
Cash dividends, ¥12 PEF SAIE ........ccveeeeerrririsrreessisesessesssese s se s ssssssesssesnnns (3,710)
Effect of change in ownership ratio of an associated company ...........c.cccoevrvnicerennnns 176
Effect of change in scope of consolidated SUDSIAIAMES ..........ccccveererrrrreeereerrereereeins 9
Change in scope of equity MEthOd...........ccrriiirirc e (223)
PUrChase Of treaSUNY STOCK ..........vvirereeirirircsesiets ettt ssssenens (34)
DiSpoSal Of treaSUNY SLOCK ........c.veiueereriririricieieisirnce ettt 3 0
Net Change in the YEAN ........c.ceve s
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2015.......cociiiiiiiriciisnieissiesssis s 309,169 ¥ 12,335 ¥ 50,645 ¥ 88,668

Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

Common Capital Retained
Stock Surplus Earnings
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2014 (APRIL 1, 2014 as previously reported).............ccveurerniernicmniernieneeneeesseeenes $ 102,646 $ 421,436 $ 619,106
Cumulative effect of aCCOUNTING CRANGE ..........cveeeereiririrrcer e ns 4,851
BALANCE, APRIL T, 2014 (S TESTAIBH) .......ccovvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesssssssssseessssssessessssassssssesssssssssssssssessssseessssssssssssessn 102,646 421,436 623,966
NELINCOME.......eeeeeececeesce ettt s a et s e b et e e ese et e et e se s s esesaese s esensetenesteneseenesaens 145,077
Cash dividends, $0.099 PEF SNATE ..........cceeurieeereereeseereiseeese et sssbse st et b bbb bbbt anen (30,872)
Effect of change in ownership ratio of an associated COMPANY .........ccccevvireernrnercere e 1,464
Effect of change in scope of consolidated SUDSIAIANES ..........coviriririrrirece e 74
Change in scope 0f eqUItY METNO..........ccccririircee s nn (1,855)
PUFChASE OF trEASUNY STOCK ........eiueeetirirccicte ittt bbbttt
DiSPOSAl OF trEASUNY STOCK ......vcveeeeiiiietetetcece ettt ettt sttt sess s s s s beberenennas 0
NEt ChaNQE iN T YBAN ......c.cueeeeciie et bbbt s s bbb nnnens
BALANCE, MARCH 371, 2075.....cuuiuitieeteetesetriseeeei et $ 102,646 $ 421,444 $ 737,854

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Millions of Yen

Accumulated other comprehensive income

¥ (583) ¥ 2,695 ¥ 14 ¥ (1,375) ¥ 74,746 ¥ 3,387 ¥ 78,134
22,768 22,768
(2,938) (2,938)
®) @)
(27) (27) (27)
1 1 1
1 1 1
512 44,072 44,072
(122) (442) 4,847 (290) 3,992 11,557 15,549
(95) 2,572 (428) 3,472 (290) 142,609 14,945 157,554
583 583
(95) 2,572 (428) 3,472 (290) 143,193 14,945 158,138
17,434 17,434
(3,710) (3,710)
176 176
9 9
(223) (223)
(13) (13) (13)
0 1 1
3,272 (126) 5,684 1,076 9,907 1,973 11,881
¥ (108) ¥ 5,845 ¥ (554) ¥ 9,157 ¥ 786 ¥ 166,775 ¥ 16,918 ¥ 183,693
Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
i i Accumulat!ed other comprehensive_ income o
$ (790) $ 21,403 $ (3,561) $ 28,892 $ (2,413) $ 1,186,727 $ 124,365 $ 1,311,092
4,851 4,851
(790) 21,403 (3,561) 28,892 (2,413) 1,191,586 124,365 1,315,952
145,077 145,077
(30,872) (30,872)
1,464 1,464
74 74
(1,855) (1,855)
(108) (108) (108)
0 8 8
27,228 (1,048) 47,299 8,953 82,441 16,418 98,868
$ (898) $ 48,639 $ (4,610) $ 76,200 $ 6,540 $ 1,387,825 $ 140,783 $ 1,528,609
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NIPPON STEEL & SUMIKIN BUSSAN CORPORATION and its Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

March 31, 2015

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
2015 2014 2015
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Income before income taxes and minority interests 28,736 ¥ 31,087 $ 239,127
Adjustments for:
INCOME TAXES-PAIA ...ttt et b bbb bbbt s s s e bbb s s st etetanas (10,111) (7,177) (84,139)
Depreciation and @aMOTHIZALION. ...........cceeriiirirre et 5,176 3,405 43,072
Equity in earnings of an unconsolidated subsidiary and associated COMPANIes.........coccvrrrrirerensrinenennnns (990) (755) (8,238)
Gain 0N NEYALIVE GOOUWII .........cuieieiiriicieietrer ettt bbbttt s (125) (11,731) (1,040)
Reversal of provision for doubtful reCEIVADIES.............ccueuiiiicicie e (14) (279) (116)
IMpairment 10SSES 0N fIXEA ASSEES .....vevivrvierieieisri ittt enen 1,709 634 14,221
Loss (gain) on sales of securities-net........... 70 (34) 582
Loss on devaluation of investment securities ..... 234 397 1,947
Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment-net (36) (80) (299)
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects from newly consolidated subsidiaries
INCIEASE N FECEIVADIES........vvviicecieieter ettt sttt etnas (7,494) (12,201) (62,361)
INCIEASE N INVENTOMES ......c.cveveviiiectcte ettt bbbt bbb bbb e s bbb s s bt ebebs s s sebebnas (11,958) (4,805) (99,509)
DECTEASE IN PAYADIES .......veveveeeeiriisisis ettt ettt et et b e ne e sttt senenen (8,365) (17,733) (69,609)
Decrease in liability for retirement DENEILS ........ovvvceericr e (363) (318) (3,020)
OBNBI-NBE ...ttt ettt bbbttt ettt bbbttt 8,766 4,130 72,946
Total adjustments (23,502) (46,549) (195,572)
Net cash provided by (used in) Operating aCIVItIES ............ccceeeriririrriieeeeeres s 5,234 (15,463) 43,554
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
INCIEASE iN TIME ABPOSILS ......cvevviicectcteteie ettt ettt a bbb bbb bbbt s s s s bbb s s s seaetennas (602) (164) (5,009)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment.. (6,534) (6,641) (54,372)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment . 382 489 3,178
Purchases of intangibIE SSEIS.........ccururuiririeirieisr bbb (97) (51) (807)
Purchases Of INVESIMENT SECUNEIES .........ceveviieiiiiiee ettt sttt s ss bbbt bebe s s s s b bebebennanns (3,623) (2,575) (30,148)
Proceeds from sales of iNVESIMENT SECUMEIES........cvivireeeeirrriece e 317 300 2,637
Purchases of the shares of companies previously unconsoldated............cccevveeerrirnnieeerrseee e (717) 159 (5,966)
Sales of the shares of companies previously UnCONSONAALEM.............cccccvveriviriiierereieeie e (11) - (91)
Increase in Short-term 10ANS FECEIVADIE. ..........cccvvveveiercteececccece ettt ettt sttt ss e s bt tesennnens (277) (20) (2,305)
Payments of 10ng-term 10aNS rECEIVADIE...........cceururiririeeetrrrceee st snnesesens (411) (114) (3,420)
Proceeds from 10ng-term 10aNS rECEIVADIE ............cocveveveviriiiics et 203 165 1,689
Other-net......ccccoeeeevecreeerecece e (196) (634) (1,631)
Net cash used in iNVESHING ACHVITIES.........vvvvuerereeiirirrrs e (11,568) (9,088) (96,263)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase in Short-term DOMMOWINGS-NEL.........ccooiriiiiieececce bbb 314 21,309 2,612
Proceeds from 10Ng-termM AEDE ...t 21,191 3,839 176,341
Repayments Of [0NG-TEIM ABDL..........c.viiece bbb (12,651) (3,736) (105,275)
DIVIAENGAS PRI ........eeeieeeieieie ettt bbb s bbb bbb bbb bbbt (3,709) (2,927) (30,864)
Dividends paid to minority ShAreNOIEIS............ccueveuiiicce bbb (397) (226) (3,303)
Proceeds from funds paid by minority Shareholders ............ccoveeeenirriiccee s - 553 -
L0 (4T o PO TP PRSPPSO (719) (161) (5,983)
Net cash provided by finanCing aCHVItIES..........cceeririririiicereteeee e 4,027 18,650 33,510
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .......cccovvvvrierreeerrererseseeeserenenas 2,552 1,776 21,236
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .......ocuotiiiiictete sttt bbb as 245 (4,125) 2,038
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS OF NEWLY CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES, BEGINNING OF YEAR.........cccovurvrvereeenerernnas 1,086 - 9,037
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR ......cocueuiiieeereteteiiecietete st sese bbbt be b ssnas 26,027 11,195 216,584
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RESULTING FROM MERGER .........ccovoveeeeniriisisnsesesesesssssesesssssssssssessssannns - 18,958 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR ........c.cooiiiuiteteteisecietete ettt sttt bbb bbb s s 27,359 ¥ 26,027 $ 227,669

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
NIPPON STEEL & SUMIKIN BUSSAN



NIPPON STEEL & SUMIKIN BUSSAN CORPORATION and its Consolidated Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2015

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL provisions set forth in the Japanese Financial Instruments and Exchange Act and its related accounting
STATEMENTS regulations and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan (“Japanese

GAAP”), which are different in certain respects as to the application and disclosure requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards. Japanese yen figures less than a million yen are rounded
down to the nearest million yen, except for per share data.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain reclassifications and rearrangements have
been made to the consolidated financial statements issued domestically in order to present them in a
form which is more familiar to readers outside Japan. In addition, certain reclassifications have been
made in the 2014 consolidated financial statements to conform to the classifications used in 2015.

On October 1, 2013, NIPPON STEEL TRADING CO., LTD. (NIPPON STEEL TRADING), as the surviving
company, merged with SUMIKIN BUSSAN CORPORATION (SUMIKIN BUSSAN), as the dissolved company,
and changed its name to NIPPON STEEL & SUMIKIN BUSSAN CORPORATION (the “Company”). The merger
qualified as a reverse acquisition with SUMIKIN BUSSAN as the acquiring company and NIPPON STEEL
TRADING as the acquired company under the “Accounting Standard for Business Combinations”
(Accounting Standards Board Japan (ASBJ) Statement No. 21, December 26, 2008) and the “Guidance on
Accounting Standard for Business Combinations and Accounting Standard for Business Divestitures”
(ASBJ Guidance No.10, December 26, 2008), and was accounted for using the purchase method.
Accordingly, the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended March 31, 2014, as the
comparative information, includes the consolidated results of operations of SUMIKIN BUSSAN for the
period from April 1, 2013, to September 30, 2013, and those of the Company for the period from
October 1, 2013, to March 31, 2014.

The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the currency of the country in which
the Company is incorporated and operates. The translations of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar
amounts are included solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan and have been made at the
rate of ¥120.17 to $1, the rate of exchange at March 31, 2015. Such translations should not be construed
as representations that the Japanese yen amounts could be converted into U.S. dollars at that or any
other rate. U.S. dollar figures less than a thousand dollars are rounded down to the nearest thousand
dollars, except for per share data.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT a. Consolidation - The consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2015, include the accounts of
ACCOUNTING POLICIES the Company and its 95 significant (96 in 2014) subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”).
Under the control and influence concepts, those companies in which the Company, directly or indirectly, is
able to exercise control over operations are fully consolidated, and those companies over which the
Group has the ability to exercise significant influence are accounted for by the equity method.

Investments in 0 (1 in 2014) unconsolidated subsidiary and 29 (31 in 2014) associated companies are
accounted for by the equity method.

Investments in the remaining unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies are stated at cost. If

NIPPON STEEL & SUMIKIN BUSSAN | 9



10

NIPPON STEEL & SUMIKIN BUSSAN

the consolidation or equity method of accounting had been applied to the investments in these
companies, the effect on the accompanying consolidated financial statements would not be material.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. All
material unrealized profit included in assets resulting from transactions within the Group is also
eliminated.

b. Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign Subsidiaries for the Consolidated Financial
Statements - In May 2006, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Practical Issues Task Force (PITF) No. 18, "Practical
Solution on Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign Subsidiaries for the Consolidated
Financial Statements." PITF No. 18 prescribes that the accounting policies and procedures applied to a
parent company and its subsidiaries for similar transactions and events under similar circumstances
should, in principle, be unified for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. However,
financial statements prepared by foreign subsidiaries in accordance with either International Financial
Reporting Standards or generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America
tentatively may be used for the consolidation process, except for the following items that should be
adjusted in the consolidation process so that net income is accounted for in accordance with Japanese
GAAP, unless they are not material: (a) amortization of goodwill; (b) scheduled amortization of actuarial
gain or loss of pensions that has been recorded in equity through other comprehensive income; (c)
expensing capitalized development costs of research and development (R&D); (d) cancellation of the fair
value model of accounting for property, plant and equipment and investment properties and incorporation
of the cost model accounting; and (e) exclusion of minority interests from net income, if contained in net
income.

c. Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign Associated Companies for the Equity
Method - In March 2008, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 16, “Accounting Standard for Equity
Method of Accounting for Investments.” The new standard requires adjustments to be made to conform
the associate’s accounting policies for similar transactions and events under similar circumstances to
those of the parent company when the associate’s financial statements are used in applying the equity
method, unless it is impracticable to determine such adjustments. In addition, financial statements
prepared by foreign associated companies in accordance with either International Financial Reporting
Standards or generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America tentatively may be
used in applying the equity method, if the following items are adjusted so that net income is accounted
for in accordance with Japanese GAAP, unless they are not material: (a) amortization of goodwill; (b)
scheduled amortization of actuarial gain or loss of pensions that has been recorded in equity through
other comprehensive income; (c) expensing capitalized development costs of R&D; (d) cancellation of the
fair value model of accounting for property, plant and equipment and investment properties and
incorporation of the cost model accounting; and (e) exclusion of minority interests from net income, if
contained in net income.

d. Cash Equivalents - Cash equivalents are short-term investments that are readily convertible into cash
and that are exposed to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash equivalents include time deposits, certificates of deposit, commercial paper and bond funds, all of
which mature or become due within three months of the date of acquisition.



e. Allowance for Doubtful Receivables - The allowance for doubtful receivables is provided principally
at an amount computed based on the actual ratio of bad debts in the past, plus the aggregate amount of
estimated losses based on an analysis of certain individual receivables.

f. Inventories - Inventories are principally stated as follows:

Steel products are stated at cost determined by the moving-average method or by the specific
identification method. Industrial machinery, nonferrous metals, cast and forged steel production and
railway wheels are stated at cost determined by the moving-average method or by the specific
identification method. Textiles are stated at cost determined by the first-in, first-out method or by the
specific identification method. Food items are stated at cost determined by the specific identification
method. Other inventories are stated at cost determined by the moving-average method or by the specific
identification method.

g. Marketable and Investment Securities - Marketable and investment securities are classified and
accounted for, depending on management’s intent, as follows:

1) trading securities, which are held for the purpose of earning capital gains in the near term, are
reported at fair value, and the related unrealized gains and losses are included in earnings; 2) held-to-
maturity debt securities, for which there is a positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, are reported at
amortized cost; and 3) available-for-sale securities, which are not classified as either of the
aforementioned securities, are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of applicable
taxes, reported in a separate component of equity.

Nonmarketable available-for-sale securities are stated at cost determined by the moving-average
method.

For other-than-temporary declines in fair value, investment securities are reduced to net realizable value
by a charge to income.

h. Property, Plant and Equipment - Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation of
property, plant and equipment of the Company and 63 (59 in 2014) of its consolidated subsidiaries is
computed by the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation of
property, plant and equipment of 33 (37 in 2014) of its consolidated subsidiaries is computed principally
by the declining-balance method at rates based on the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Equipment held for lease is depreciated by the straight-line method over the respective lease periods.

i. Long-Lived Assets - The Group reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstance indicate the carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or asset group exceeds the sum of
the undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the continued use and eventual disposition of
the asset or asset group. The impairment loss would be measured as the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of the discounted cash flows
from the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or the net selling price at disposition.

j- Goodwill - Goodwill is amortized on a straight-line basis over five years.
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k. Retirement and Pension Plans - The Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries have non-
contributory-funded pension plans covering substantially all of their employees. Certain consolidated
subsidiaries have severance payment plans for directors and audit & supervisory board members.

In May 2012, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 26, "Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits"
and ASBJ Guidance No. 25, "Guidance on Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits," which replaced
the accounting standard for retirement benefits that had been issued by the Business Accounting Council
in 1998 with an effective date of April 1, 2000, and the other related practical guidance, and were
followed by partial amendments from time to time through 2009.

(@) Under the revised accounting standard, actuarial gains and losses and past service costs that are yet
to be recognized in profit or loss are recognized within equity (accumulated other comprehensive
income), after adjusting for tax effects, and any resulting deficit or surplus is recognized as a liability
(liability for retirement benefits) or asset (asset for retirement benefits).

(b) The revised accounting standard does not change how to recognize actuarial gains and losses and
past service costs in profit or loss. Those amounts are recognized in profit or loss over a certain period
no longer than the expected average remaining service period of the employees. However, actuarial
gains and losses and past service costs that arose in the current period and have not yet been
recognized in profit or loss are included in other comprehensive income and actuarial gains and
losses and past service costs that were recognized in other comprehensive income in prior periods
and then recognized in profit or loss in the current period are treated as reclassification adjustments.

(c) The revised accounting standard also made certain amendments relating to the method of attributing
expected benefit to periods and relating to the discount rate and expected future salary increases.

This accounting standard and the guidance for (a) and (b) above are effective for the end of annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2013, and for (c) above are effective for the beginning of annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2014, or for the beginning of annual periods beginning on or after
April 1, 2015, subject to certain disclosure in March 2015, both with earlier application being permitted
from the beginning of annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2013. However, no retrospective
application of this accounting standard to consolidated financial statements in prior periods is required.

The Company applied the revised accounting standard and guidance for retirement benefits for (a) and (b)
above, effective March 31, 2014, and for (c) above, effective April 1, 2014.

With respect to (c) above, the Company changed the method of attributing the expected benefit to periods
from a straight-line basis to a benefit formula basis and the method of determining the discount rate from
using the period which approximates the expected average remaining service period to using a single
weighted average discount rate reflecting the estimated timing and amount of benefit payment, and
recorded the effect of (c) above as of April 1, 2014, in retained earnings.

The effect of this change is immaterial.

I. Asset Retirement Obligations - An asset retirement obligation (ARO) is defined as a legal obligation
imposed by either law or contract that results from the acquisition, construction, development and the



normal operation of a tangible fixed asset and is associated with the retirement of such tangible fixed
asset. The ARO is recognized as the sum of the discounted cash flows required for the future asset
retirement and is recorded in the period in which the obligation is incurred if a reasonable estimate can
be made. If a reasonable estimate of the ARO cannot be made in the period the ARO is incurred, the
liability should be recognized when a reasonable estimate of the ARO can be made. Upon initial
recognition of a liability for an ARO, an asset retirement cost is capitalized by increasing the carrying
amount of the related fixed asset by the amount of the liability. The asset retirement cost is subsequently
allocated to expense through depreciation over the remaining useful life of the asset. Over time, the
liability is accreted to its present value each period. Any subsequent revisions to the timing or the
amount of the original estimate of undiscounted cash flows are reflected as an adjustment to the carrying
amount of the liability and the capitalized amount of the related asset retirement cost.

m. Leases - In March 2007, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 13, "Accounting Standard for Lease
Transactions,” which revised the previous accounting standard for lease transactions.

Under the previous accounting standard, finance leases that were deemed to transfer ownership of the
leased property to the lessee were capitalized. However, other finance leases were permitted to be
accounted for as operating lease transactions if certain "as if capitalized" information was disclosed in
the notes to the lessee's financial statements. The revised accounting standard requires that all finance
lease transactions be capitalized by recognizing lease assets and lease obligations in the balance sheet.

In addition, the revised accounting standard permits leases that existed at the transition date and do not
transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee to continue to be accounted for as operating lease
transactions.

The Company applied the revised accounting standard effective April 1, 2008. In addition, the Company
accounted for leases that existed at the transition date and do not transfer ownership of the leased
property to the lessee as operating lease transactions.

All other leases are accounted for as operating leases.

n. Income Taxes - The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pretax income included in
the consolidated statement of income. The asset and liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax
assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes are measured by applying
currently enacted income tax rates to the temporary differences.

0. Foreign Currency Transactions - All short-term and long-term monetary receivables and payables
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese yen at the exchange rates at the balance
sheet date. The foreign exchange gains and losses from translation are recognized in the consolidated
statement of income to the extent that they are not hedged by foreign currency forward contracts.

p. Foreign Currency Financial Statements - The balance sheet accounts of the consolidated foreign
subsidiaries are translated into Japanese yen at the current exchange rate as of the balance sheet date
except for equity, which is translated at the historical rate. Differences arising from such translation are
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shown as “Foreign currency translation adjustments” under accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) in a separate component of equity. Revenue and expense accounts of consolidated foreign
subsidiaries are translated into yen at the average exchange rate.

q. Derivatives and Hedging Activities - The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage its
exposures to fluctuations in foreign exchange and interest rates. Derivatives include foreign currency
forward contracts, currency swaps, currency options, interest rate swaps and commodity swaps, which
are utilized by the Group to reduce foreign currency exchange, interest rate risks and market price. The
Group does not enter into derivatives for trading or speculative purposes.

Derivative financial instruments and foreign currency transactions are classified and accounted for as
follows:

1) All derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities and measured at fair value, and gains or
losses on derivative transactions are recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

2) For derivatives used for hedging purposes, if such derivatives qualify for hedge accounting because of
high correlation and effectiveness between the hedging instruments and the hedged items, gains or
losses on derivatives are deferred until maturity of the hedged transactions.

The foreign currency forward contracts are utilized to hedge foreign currency exposures for imports from
overseas suppliers. Trade payables denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the contracted
rates if the forward contracts qualify for hedge accounting. Interest rate swaps are utilized to hedge
interest rate exposures of short-term borrowings and long-term debt. Commodity swaps are utilized to
manage the price fluctuation risk of merchandise. The swaps that qualify for hedge accounting are
measured at market value at the balance sheet date, and the unrealized gains or losses are deferred until
maturity as deferred gain (loss) under hedge accounting in a separate component of equity.

Short-term bank loans are used to fund the Group’s ongoing operations, and long-term debt including
bank loans are utilized to fund capital investment. Although a portion of such bank loans with floating
rates are exposed to market risks from changes in variable interest rates, those risks are mitigated by
using derivatives of interest rate swaps.

Derivatives mainly include foreign currency forward contracts, currency swaps, currency options and
interest rate swaps. Foreign currency forward contracts, currency swaps and currency options are used
to manage exposure to market risks from changes in foreign currency exchange rates of receivables,
payables and investment for securities in foreign currencies including foreign subsidiaries. Interest rate
swaps are used to manage exposure to market risks from changes in interest rates of bank loans.
Commodity swaps are used to manage exposure to market risks from fluctuations in merchandise prices.

r. Per Share Information - Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income available to
common shareholders by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the
period, retroactively adjusted for stock splits.

The weighted-average number of shares of common stock used in the computation was 309,186
thousand shares for 2015 and 241,996 thousand shares for 2014.



Diluted net income per share is not disclosed because no potentially dilutive securities have been issued.
Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consolidated statement of income are
dividends applicable to the respective fiscal years, including dividends to be paid after the end of the year.

s. New Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting Standards for Business Combinations and Consolidated Financial Statements - In
September 2013, the ASBJ issued revised ASBJ Statement No. 21, "Accounting Standard for Business
Combinations," revised ASBJ Guidance No. 10, "Guidance on Accounting Standards for Business
Combinations and Business Divestitures," and revised ASBJ Statement No. 22, "Accounting Standard for
Consolidated Financial Statements." Major accounting changes are as follows:

(@) Transactions with noncontrolling interest - A parent's ownership interest in a subsidiary might change
if the parent purchases or sells ownership interests in its subsidiary. The carrying amount of minority
interest is adjusted to reflect the change in the parent's ownership interest in its subsidiary while the
parent retains its controlling interest in its subsidiary. Under the current accounting standard, any
difference between the fair value of the consideration received or paid and the amount by which the
minority interest is adjusted is accounted for as an adjustment of goodwill or as profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of income. Under the revised accounting standard, such difference shall be
accounted for as capital surplus as long as the parent retains control over its subsidiary.

(b) Presentation of the consolidated balance sheet - In the consolidated balance sheet, "minority interest"
under the current accounting standard will be changed to "noncontrolling interest" under the revised
accounting standard.

(c) Presentation of the consolidated statement of income - In the consolidated statement of income,
"income before minority interest" under the current accounting standard will be changed to "net
income" under the revised accounting standard, and "net income" under the current accounting
standard will be changed to "net income attributable to owners of the parent" under the revised
accounting standard.

(d) Provisional accounting treatments for a business combination - If the initial accounting for a business
combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the business combination
occurs, an acquirer shall report in its financial statements provisional amounts for the items for which
the accounting is incomplete. Under the current accounting standard guidance, the impact of
adjustments to provisional amounts recorded in a business combination on profit or loss is recognized
as profit or loss in the year in which the measurement is completed. Under the revised accounting
standard guidance, during the measurement period, which shall not exceed one year from the
acquisition, the acquirer shall retrospectively adjust the provisional amounts recognized at the
acquisition date to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of
the acquisition date and that would have affected the measurement of the amounts recognized as of
that date. Such adjustments shall be recognized as if the accounting for the business combination had
been completed at the acquisition date.
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(e) Acquisition-related costs - Acquisition-related costs are costs, such as advisory fees or professional
fees, which an acquirer incurs to effect a business combination. Under the current accounting
standard, the acquirer accounts for acquisition-related costs by including them in the acquisition costs
of the investment. Under the revised accounting standard, acquisition-related costs shall be
accounted for as expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred.

The above accounting standards and guidance for (a) transactions with noncontrolling interest, (b)
presentation of the consolidated balance sheet, (c) presentation of the consolidated statement of income,
and (e) acquisition-related costs are effective for the beginning of annual periods beginning on or after
April 1, 2015. Earlier application is permitted from the beginning of annual periods beginning on or after
April 1, 2014, except for (b) presentation of the consolidated balance sheet and (c) presentation of the
consolidated statement of income. In the case of earlier application, all accounting standards and
guidance above, except for (b) presentation of the consolidated balance sheet and (c) presentation of the
consolidated statement of income, should be applied simultaneously.

Either retrospective or prospective application of the revised accounting standards and guidance for (a)
transactions with noncontrolling interest and (e) acquisition-related costs is permitted. In retrospective
application of the revised standards and guidance, the accumulated effects of retrospective adjustments
for all (a) transactions with noncontrolling interest and (e) acquisition-related costs which occurred in the
past shall be reflected as adjustments to the beginning balance of capital surplus and retained earnings
for the year of the first-time application. In prospective application, the new standards and guidance shall
be applied prospectively from the beginning of the year of the first-time application.

The revised accounting standards and guidance for (b) presentation of the consolidated balance sheet
and (c) presentation of the consolidated statement of income shall be applied to all periods presented in
financial statements containing the first-time application of the revised standards and guidance.

The revised standards and guidance for (d) provisional accounting treatments for a business combination
are effective for a business combination which occurs on or after the beginning of annual periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2015. Earlier application is permitted for a business combination which
occurs on or after the beginning of annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2014.

The Company expects to apply the revised accounting standards and guidance for (a), (b), (c) and (e)
above from April 1, 2015, and for (d) above for a business combination which will occur on or after
April 1, 2015, and is in the process of measuring the effects of applying the revised accounting standards
and guidance in future applicable periods.



3. MARKETABLE AND INVESTMENT
SECURITIES

Marketable and investment securities as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2015 2014 2015
Non-current:
Marketable equity securities...........ccocevvveieveiensinsccseceens ¥ 2383 ¥ 20,030 $ 198,335
OHNBE e 11,554 10,025 96,197
TOMAl ..o ¥ 35388 ¥ 30,055 $ 294,482

The costs and aggregate fair values of marketable and investment securities at March 31, 2015 and
2014, were as follows:

Millions of Yen
March 31,2015 Cost Unrealized Unrealized Fair Value
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Equity SECUNIES ....o.cvcveveveiccccesr s ¥ 16,806 ¥ 8,168 ¥ 1,140 ¥ 23,834
Millions of Yen
March 31, 2014 Cost Unrealized Unrealized Fair Value
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Equity SECUNIES ....o.vveveverivccce v ¥ 16,791 ¥ 5154 ¥ 1,915 ¥ 20,030

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Unrealized Unrealized

March 31,2015 Cost Gains L0555 Fair Value
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Equity SECUIES .....cvvevercreeeeevc e $ 139,851 $ 67970 $ 9486 $ 198,335
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The information for available-for-sale securities which were sold during the years ended March 31, 2015
and 2014, is as follows:

Millions of Yen
March 31, 2015 Proceeds Realized Gains Realized Loss
Available-for-sale:
Marketable equity SeCUrities..........cccoevvveeveciercccc s ¥ 294 ¥ 58
ONEE ettt 19 12
TOMA v ¥ 314 ¥ 70
Millions of Yen
March 31, 2014 Proceeds Realized Gains Realized Loss
Available-for-sale:
Marketable equity SECUMLIES.........cvrururrerieresrrceeee e ¥ 255 ¥ 68 ¥ 2
ONBI oot 0 0
TOUA v ¥ 256 ¥ 68 ¥ 2

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

March 31 , 2015 Proceeds Realized Gains Realized Loss
Available-for-sale:
Marketable equity SECUMHES..........cvevevreereerrersesiierieseieesene $ 2446 $ 482
ONEE ettt 158 99
L0 Lt PP PTR $ 2612 $ 582

The impairment losses on available-for-sale marketable equity securities for the years ended March 31,
2015 and 2014, were ¥0 million ($0 thousand).

The impairment losses on other available-for-sale equity securities for the years ended March 31, 2015
and 2014, were ¥0 million ($0 thousand) and ¥75 million, respectively.

Inventories at March 31, 2015 and 2014, consisted of the following:

Millions of Yen Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
2015 2014 2015
Merchandise and finished products ............cccooveeeeicnnvniceens ¥ 82151 ¥ 72544 $ 683,623
WOPK IN PrOCESS ....veviviieeiteteteieieess st snes 3,507 2,094 29,183
Raw materials and SUPPIIES ........ccvvvevereeriririririsieieeeeese s eeeeas 20,616 14,818 171,556
L0 L¢P ¥ 106275 ¥ 89457 $ 884,372

The Group recognized impairment losses of ¥1,709 million ($14,221 thousand) for operating assets for
the year ended March 31, 2015, and ¥634 million for operating assets for the year ended March 31,
2014.

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries classify fixed assets into groups, at the minimum cash-
generating unit level, by the type of the respective business. Certain consolidated subsidiaries classify
groups by store. For idle assets, each property is considered to constitute a group.



6. GOODWILL

7. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND
LONG-TERM DEBT

Due to consecutive operating losses or a significant decrease in the market value of land, the book values
of long-lived assets are reduced to the recoverable amounts and the amounts written down are recorded
as impairment losses on fixed assets.

The recoverable amounts are calculated based on the higher of net sales value or value in use.

In the case of value in use, the relevant assets are evaluated based on expected future cash flows
discounted mainly at 4.70% for the year ended March 31, 2015, and 4.06% for the year ended March 31,
2014.

In the case of net sales value, the relevant assets are evaluated based on publicly assessed values.

Goodwill as of March 31,2015 and 2014, consisted of the following:

Millions of Yen Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
2015 2014 2015
Consolidation goodWill.............ceerurrirnnrrirceeese s ¥ 189 ¥ 139 $ 1,672
AcqUISItIoN GOOAWIl .........coovevrviiirerereiie e 0 0 0
TOUAL ... ¥ 189 ¥ 139 § 1,572

Amortization charged to selling, general and administrative expenses for the years ended March 31, 2015
and 2014, was ¥206 million ($1,714 thousand) and ¥135 million, respectively.

Short-term borrowings at March 31, 2015 and 2014, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2015 2014 2015
Loans, primarily from banks with interest
principally at 0.144% to 9.800% in 2015 and
0.150% to 12.672% in 2014:
COllAteralized ...........coueeeverrererieirieseeieee e ¥ 3,180 ¥ 3860 $ 26,462
UNSBCUIEA........cocvervieiiiciereiresiei sttt 156,763 150,469 1,304,510
Short-term DOrTOWINGS .....c.veeveuriririreeeeirire s sssesesnens ¥ 159,943 ¥ 154329 $ 1,330,972

Long-term debt at March 31, 2015 and 2014, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2015 2014 2015
Loans, primarily from banks and insurance companies
with interest principally at 0.330% to 2.740% in 2015,
0.288% to0 5.843% in 2014, due serially through 2016:
COllALEraliZed ..........ccveveviieiciriieeeerereee s ¥ 136 ¥ 212 $ 1,131
UNSECUIEA.......coveeteeteeei it 46,202 34,961 384,47
Obligations under fiNance 1€ASES ..........cccovrveverereerrerrireerenerererenenes 1,557 1,046 12,956
TOMAl .o 47,895 36,219 398,560
LeSS CUITENE POTLION........cvveieceeieirireeieie e (13,110) (12,495) (109,095)
Long-term debt, less current portion................ccccceevcvriviviiicrennas ¥ 34,785 ¥ 23723 $ 289,464
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8. RETIREMENT AND PENSION PLANS
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The annual maturities of long-term debt excluding finance leases as of March 31, 2015, were as follows:

Years Ending March 31 Millions of Yen TS%J‘SS;?:[?
2018 oo ¥ 12,401 $ 103,195
2017 6,914 57,535
2018 3,366 28,010
2019 2,399 19,963
2020 aNd therafter.........ceiveveieteicee e st s be b 21,256 176,882
Total ¥ 46,338 $ 385,603

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral for short-term borrowings and long-term debt at

March 31, 2015, were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
INVESTMENT SECUNTIBS ......vcvevviveiitei ettt st s be e besre b ¥ 817 $ 6,798
LANG bbb 961 7,997
Machinery and eQUIPMENT ..........cceiiririrrseeeeee e 1 8
BUIlAINGS @Nd STUCIUIES .........ccoveveieiiiiriccsetce s seeaenas 1,100 9,153

As is customary in Japan, the Company maintains deposit balances with banks with which it has bank
loans. Such deposit balances are not legally or contractually restricted as to withdrawal.

In addition, the bank borrowings are subject to agreements under which collateral must be given if
requested by the lending banks, and certain banks have the right to offset cash deposited with them
against any bank loan or obligation that becomes due and, in case of default and certain other specified
events, against all other debt payable to the bank concerned. The Company has never received any such
request.

The Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries have severance payment plans for employees, and
certain consolidated subsidiaries have severance payment plans for directors and audit & supervisory
board members. Under most circumstances, employees terminating their employment are entitled to
retirement benefits determined based on the rate of pay at the time of termination, years of service and
certain other factors. Such retirement benefits are made in the form of a lump-sum severance payment
from the Company or from certain consolidated subsidiaries and annuity payments from a trustee.
Employees are entitled to larger payments if the termination is involuntary, by retirement at the
mandatory retirement age, by death, or by voluntary retirement at certain specific ages prior to the
mandatory retirement age.

The liability for retirement benefits at March 31, 2015 and 2014, for directors and Audit & Supervisory
Board members is ¥442 million ($3,678 thousand) and ¥437 million, respectively.



(1) The changes in defined benefit obligation for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, were as

follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of
2015 2014 2015

Balance at beginning of year (as previously reported)...................... ¥ 19200 ¥ 10,250 $ 159,773
Cumulative effect of accounting change ...........ccceeuvverierenunene (906) (7,539)

Balance at beginning of year (as restated) ..........cccocoveerrrrencnene 18,293 10,250 152,226
CUrrent SErViCe COSE......cvcvivietiieteeceecee e 1,019 748 8,479
INEIESE COSE ... e 135 147 1,123
Actuarial differenCe .........covveeeererrereereeessireeeeesesess e (82) (51) (682)
BENEfits PaId........cceevreriirieierrereeee s (1,363) (1,036) (11,342)
Increase by the MErger .........coveveeeeerrreneceersereee s 9,141

Balance at end of Year ............cccovviiecinririceeseee e ¥ 18,002 ¥ 19200 $ 149,804

(2) The changes in plan assets for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2015 2014 2015
Balance at beginning of Year ............ccovevevnnvcnnsneese s ¥ 17947 ¥ 7,011 $ 149,346
Expected return on plan assets..........ccoovvreeennnccennnceeen 445 284 3,703
Actuarial differenCe .........cccceevireverieeeeeere e 1,149 620 9,561
Contributions from the employer ..........ccovvveeeeiennivsseeienns 881 853 7,331
BENEfits PAId........ccverirririiieieirrre e (938) (757) (7,805)
Increase due t0 the MErger ........ccovvvvveeeeierr e 9,935
Net periodic benefit COStS .........ccoovvirvrcniviiccecscccc e ¥ 19485 ¥ 17,947 $ 162,145

(3) Reconciliation between the liability recorded in the consolidated balance sheet and the balances of

defined benefit obligation and plan assets

Millions of Yen

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
2015 2014 2015
Funded defined benefit obligation ...........ccoovvvecieivinnirccen ¥ 16,308 ¥ 17,620 $ 135,707
Plan assets (19,485) (17,947) (162,145)
(3,177) (327) (26,437)
Unfunded defined benefit obligation.............cococeevvviiccnnnncene. 1,694 1,579 14,096
Net (asset) liability arising from defined benefit obligation............... ¥ (1,482 ¥ 1,252 $ (12,332)
Millions of Yen Thousands of
2015 2014 2015
Liability for retirement benefits ¥ 1,720 ¥ 2,785 $ 14313
Asset for retirement benefits (3,203) (1,533) (26,653)
Net (asset) liability arising from defined benefit obligation ¥ (1,482 ¥ 1,252 $ (12,332)
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(4) The components of net periodic benefit costs for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, were as
follows: Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2015 2014 2015
SEIVICE COST.....vviiicieie e ¥ 749 ¥ 462 $ 6,232
INEErESE COSL....cuiiiiicctccc s 135 147 1,123
Expected return on plan assets.........cccoeovvvvvvieeeisneninvesse e (445) (284) (3,703)
Amortization of prior SErvice COSt.........covvvveeeeierinirsseeeeseens (34) (41) (282)
Recognized actuarial difference..........ocovevvrecnsvsereseesseseeens 100 153 832
Pension expenses for which the simplified method is applied.......... 270 286 2,246
ONEIS e 12 72 99
Net periodic benefit COSES .........cocvvrirreirccecccc e ¥ 788 ¥ 795 $ 6,557

(5) Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (before income tax effect) in respect of defined
retirement benefit plans for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2015 2014 2015
PriOr SBIVICE COSL......cvvcvicricre ettt ettt ¥ (34) $ (282)
Actuarial differenCe.........cccvveeveiieeceee e 1,647 13,705
TOTAl .o ¥ 1,613 $ 13,422

(6) Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (before income tax effect) in
respect of defined retirement benefit plans as of March 31, 2015 and 2014

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2015 2014 2015
Unrecognized prior SErvice COSt..........cveururvreernrrireess s ¥ 34
Unrecognized actuarial difference..... ¥ (1,161) (486) $  (9,661)
TOTAl .o ¥ (1,161) ¥ (451) $  (9,661)

(7) Plan assets
a. Components of plan assets
Plan assets as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, consisted of the following:

2015 2014
Debt iNVESIMENTS........ccccvcrerre s 51% 51%
Equity INVeStMENtS .........ccooveviviiicecce e 34 35
OHHEIS oot 15 14
TOMAL oottt ettt 100% 100%

b. Method of determining the expected rate of return on plan assets
The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined considering the long-term rates of return
which are expected currently and in the future from the various components of the plan assets.

(8) Assumptions used for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, were set forth as follows:

2015 2014
DISCOUNT FALE .......vvvceici e 0.6-1.2% 1.0-1.6%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 2.0% 2.0%

generally generally
Expected rate of future salary increases ............ccceevevevvvvveverennnes 4.1-6.5% 4.2-6.5%




9. EQUITY Japanese companies are subject to the Companies Act of Japan (the “Companies Act”). The significant
provisions in the Companies Act that affect financial and accounting matters are summarized below:

(1) Dividends
Under the Companies Act, companies can pay dividends at any time during the fiscal year in addition
to the year-end dividend upon resolution at the shareholders’ meeting. For companies that meet
certain criteria, the Board of Directors may declare dividends (except for dividends in kind) at any time
during the fiscal year if the company has prescribed so in its articles of incorporation. However, the
Company cannot do so because it does not meet all the above criteria.

The Companies Act permits companies to distribute dividends in kind (non-cash assets) to
shareholders subject to a certain limitation and additional requirements.

Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid once a year upon resolution by the Board of Directors
if the articles of incorporation of the company so stipulate. The Companies Act provides certain
limitations on the amounts available for dividends or the purchase of treasury stock. The limitation is
defined as the amount available for distribution to the shareholders, but the amount of net assets after
dividends must be maintained at no less than ¥3 million.

(2) Increases/decreases and transfer of common stock, reserve and surplus

The Companies Act requires that an amount equal to 10% of dividends must be appropriated as a
legal reserve (a component of retained earnings) or as additional paid-in capital (a component of
capital surplus), depending on the equity account charged upon the payment of such dividends, until
the aggregate amount of legal reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 25% of the common
stock. Under the Companies Act, the total amount of additional paid-in capital and legal reserve may
be reversed without limitation. The Companies Act also provides that common stock, legal reserve,
additional paid-in capital, other capital surplus and retained earnings can be transferred among the
accounts within equity under certain conditions upon resolution of the shareholders.

(3) Treasury stock and treasury stock acquisition rights
The Companies Act also provides for companies to purchase treasury stock and dispose of such
treasury stock by resolution of the Board of Directors. The amount of treasury stock purchased
cannot exceed the amount available for distribution to the shareholders which is determined by a
specific formula.

Under the Companies Act, stock acquisition rights are presented as a separate component of equity.
The Companies Act also provides that companies can purchase both treasury stock acquisition rights

and treasury stock. Such treasury stock acquisition rights are presented as a separate component of
equity or deducted directly from stock acquisition rights.
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The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to a number of different taxes based on
income, which, in the aggregate, resulted in an effective normal statutory tax rate of approximately
35% and 38% for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The consolidated foreign
subsidiaries are subject to a number of different taxes based on income at tax rates specific to the

rates of each country.

The tax effects of significant temporary differences and tax loss carryforwards which resulted in

deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2015 and 2014, are as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of
2015 2014 2015
Deferred Tax Assets:

INVENEOMIES ...vovoiiicie bbb 1,385 1,308 $ 11,525
Provision for doubtful receivables... 1,725 1,758 14,354
Excess depreciation .............ccccceevevririrnnne. 967 1,007 8,046
Loss on devaluation of investment securities...........ccccoeevvevevierennns 467 392 3,886

Loss on devaluation of stock and investments
in associated COMPANIES.........coverereeerereriereie e 880 952 7,322
Loss on devaluation of golf club membership ...........cccceervncneee 305 328 2,538
Business taxes payable .........cccovvvvvvvcieieieiie e 448 404 3,728
Accrued bonuses t0 BMPIOYEES .......ccccvvririveverieieerere s 1,080 1,051 8,987
Liability for retirement benefitS..........cocecevrvrenvvvseeieiernrsseieens 600 999 4,992
Tax 10SS CArryfOrWArdS .........c.cccvvvivererereeieeeceree et 1,784 1,245 14,845
Elimination of unrealized gain on inventories.............ccccceeevvvviverernes 478 426 3,977
Elimination of unrealized gain on property, plant and equipment..... 164 164 1,364
ONEE ettt ettt 2,115 2,185 17,600
Less valuation alloWanCe...........cuevveveeveeeeererisesessieeeesesesesesseeenas (5,354) (5,142) (44,553)
L0162 PP 7,049 7,083 $§ 58,658

Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities...............c....... 4,613 3,506 $ 38,387
Unrealized gains on assets and

liabilities of consolidated subsidiaries ............cccceeevevvireveirecennns 552 598 4,593
Undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries .. 537 381 4,468
Asset for retirement Denefits .........c.occoeveviieivciccecce s 830 171 6,906
1,092 1,224 9,087
7,627 5882 $ 63,468
(577) 1,200 $  (4,801)

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rates and the actual effective tax rates
reflected in the accompanying consolidated statement of income for the year ended March 31, 2015,

with the corresponding figures for 2014, is as follows:

2015 2014

Normal effective statutory tax rate.........coovvveeieieieir e 35.6% 38.0%
Effect of taxation on dividends eliminated in consolidation 3.7 3.5
Non-taxable gain ......... 4.3) (3.1)
NON-AedUCTIDIE BXPENSES. ......ceeeeeeiieieieierreeieie sttt 0.7 1.0
Gain and loss on investments from equity Method ...........cccovviernnnnncnrrccene (1.3) 0.9
Gain on Negative goOWIll.............ceeveiiiiirrsie e e (0.2) (14.3)
Effect of tax rate reduCtion.............ocoeeeernniceir e 0.3 1.1
L0031 PP TTRRPTT 1.2 (0.6)
Actual effeCtive TaX TAIE ... 35.8% 24.7%




New tax reform laws enacted in 2015 in Japan changed the normal effective statutory tax rate for the
fiscal year beginning on or after April 1, 2015, to approximately 33.1% and for the fiscal year beginning on
or after April 1, 2016, to approximately 32.3%. The effect of these changes was to decrease deferred tax
liabilities, net of deferred tax assets, by ¥389 million ($3,237 thousand) and deferred gain on derivatives
under hedge accounting by ¥21 million ($174 thousand), and increase accumulated other comprehensive
income for unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities by ¥465 million ($3,869 thousand), and defined
retirement benefit plan by ¥38 million ($316 thousand), and to increase income taxes—deferred in the
consolidated statement of income for the year then ended by ¥92 million ($765 thousand).

At March 31, 2015, certain subsidiaries have tax loss carryforwards aggregating approximately ¥5,284
million ($43,971 thousand), which are available to be offset against taxable income of such subsidiaries
in future years. These tax loss carryforwards, if not utilized, will expire as follows:

Thousands of

Year Ending March 31 Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2077 et ¥ 146 $ 1,214
208 bbbttt 722 6,008
776 6,457

349 2,904

301 2,504

359 2,987

624 5,192

2,003 16,668

¥ 5284 § 4397

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND (1) Group policy for financial instruments
RELATED DISCLOSURES The Group utilizes indirect and direct financing, such as bank loans and liquidation of receivables for
working capital including inventory funds and funds of capital investments, positions to secure
mobility, reduction of costs and stable procuration as the basic funding policy. In addition, the Group
does not invest for speculative purposes because it does not have cash surpluses, and uses minimum
necessary imprest funds as short-term deposits. Derivatives are used, not for speculative purposes,
but to manage exposure to financial risks as described in (2) below.

(2) Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments

Payment terms of receivables, such as trade notes and trade accounts, are mostly less than one year.
They are exposed to customer credit risk. Although receivables in foreign currencies are exposed to
the market risk of fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates, the position, net of payables, is
hedged by using foreign currency forward contracts. Marketable and investment securities, mainly
securities of financial institutions or customers and suppliers of the Group, are additionally exposed to
the risk of market price fluctuations. Marketable and investment securities in foreign currencies are
exposed to the market risk of fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates.

Payment terms of payables, such as trade notes and trade accounts, are mostly less than one year.
Although payables in foreign currencies are exposed to the market risk of fluctuation in foreign
currency exchange rates, the position, net of receivables, is hedged by using foreign currency forward
contracts. Although merchandise which is sold at fixed price is exposed to the risk of market price
fluctuations, those risks are hedged by using commodity swaps.

Short-term borrowings are used for the Group’s ongoing operations, and long-term debt, such as bank
loans, is utilized to fund capital investment. Although a portion of such bank loans with floating rates

is exposed to market risks from changes in variable interest rates, those risks are mitigated by using
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derivatives of interest rate swaps. Although a portion of long-term debt in foreign currency is exposed
to market risks of fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rate, those risks are mitigated by using
derivatives of currency swaps. Derivatives include foreign currency forward contracts, currency
swaps, currency options, interest rate swaps and commodity swaps, which are used to manage
exposure to market risks from changes in foreign currency exchange rates of receivables and
payables, from changes in interest rates of bank loans, and from fluctuations in merchandise prices.
Please see Note 12 for more details of derivatives.

(3) Risk management for financial instruments

(i) Credit risk management
Credit risk is the risk of economic loss arising from a counterparty’s failure to repay or service debt
according to the contractual terms. The Company manages its credit risk on the basis of credit
management guidelines, which include assessing customers quantitatively and qualitatively by the
Credit Control Department to set credit limits. The credit limits are periodically reviewed. The
consolidated subsidiaries manage credit risk under similar credit management guidelines.
With respect to derivative transactions, the Company manages its exposure to counterparty risk by
limiting its transactions to high credit rating financial institutions.

(i) Market risk management (foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk)
The Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries manage the market risk of fluctuation in
foreign currency exchange rates of foreign currency trade receivables and payables principally by
using foreign currency forward contracts. In addition, foreign exchange risk is hedged by foreign
currency forward contracts when foreign currency trade receivables and payables are expected
from forecasted transactions.
Interest rate swaps are used to manage exposure to market risks from changes in interest rates of
loan payables.
Marketable and investment securities are managed by monitoring market values and the financial
position of issuers periodically, and the Company continuously reviews the status of holding
securities by considering its relationship with customers and suppliers of the Group. The loans in
foreign currencies are used to manage exposure to the market risk from fluctuation in foreign
currency exchange rates of some investment securities in foreign currencies.
Derivative transactions are entered into by the Finance Department under the limits of transactions
which are approved at the Board of Directors’ meeting based on the internal guidelines which
prescribe the limit for each transaction, and the balances of transactions with customers are
verified by the Accounting Department. In addition, the consolidated subsidiaries manage
derivative transactions based on the Company’s internal guidelines.

(iii) Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk comprises the risk that the Group cannot meet its contractual obligations in full on
maturity dates. The Group manages its liquidity risk by the Group’s treasury management through
its Cash Management System, diversification of financing measures, loans from several financial
institutions, and the adjustment for the length of financing from Asset Liability Management. In
addition, the Finance Department manages short-term liquidity daily by reviewing the funds, along
with renewal of financial planning based on the reports from each section and the Company’s
subsidiaries.

(4) Fair values of financial instruments

Carrying amounts, fair values and unrealized gain or loss of financial instruments as of March 31, 2015
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and 2014, are as follows. Financial instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably determined are not
included below. Also, please see Note 12 for the details of fair value for derivatives.
(i) Fair value of financial instruments

Millions of Yen
March 31,2015 Carrying Amount Fair Value Unrealized Gain /Loss
Cash and cash equivalents ..........c.cccoveveernnecsnsnee s ¥ 27359 ¥ 27,359
RECEIVADIES .....ovviiciieirirrcce e 400,001
Allowance for doubtful receivables.............cccoervrirecirnnnniceerne (1,654)
ReCEIVADIES-NEL .......oceiveiieecce e 398,347 398,347
INVESTMENE SECUMLIES......ecvieereeitee e 23,834 23,834
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries
and associated COMPANIES ........ccevrvrirrirereeiirirrrsee e 8,574 12,841 ¥ 4,267
TOMAL....cvivieiiccccc s ¥ 458,116 ¥ 462,383 ¥ 4,267
Short-term DOITOWINGS .....cvcveiiriieisie e ¥ 159,943 ¥ 159,943
Current portion of long-term debt..........ccccoevvvvvciceinvrcccee e 13,110 13,110
PaYADIES ......o.ceeeeeeiririereiete st nnes 251,408 251,408
Long-term debt..........ccovvevviiicecs e 34,785 34,883 ¥ (97)
TOMAL....cvcviiiccecc s ¥ 459248 ¥ 459,345 ¥ (97)
Millions of Yen
March 31,2014 Carrying Amount Fair Vialue Unrealized Gain /Loss
Cash and cash equivalents ...........cccccvveveennsccee e ¥ 26,027 ¥ 26,027
RECEIVADIES ......cooveviieriietee et 387,042
Allowance for doubtful receivables.............ccceurvriririenrnnereernens (1,968)
ReCeivableS-NEL ..........c.coveveeiiic s 385,074 385,074
INVESTMENE SECUMLIES.......cvieeteeitee e 20,030 20,030
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries
and associated COMPANIES ........ccevrvrererrreeeeirirereseseeeeere e sesees 4,868 7187 ¥ 2,318
TOMAL ..o ¥ 436,001 ¥ 438320 ¥ 2,318
Short-term DOIrTOWINGS ....cvcvviiiiiiicceee e ¥ 154329 ¥ 154,329
Current portion of long-term debt..........coovveeeiiinivscece 12,495 12,495
PaY@DIES ..o e 255,784 255,784
Long-term debt. 23,723 23,874 ¥ (150)
TOMAL ..o ¥ 446,333 ¥ 446,484 ¥ (150)
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
March 31,2015 Carrying Amount Fair Value Unrealized Gain /Loss
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS ...........ccocevviveriireiereeee e $ 227669 $ 227,669
RECEIVADIES .....coovevieetiictie et 3,328,626
Allowance for doubtful receivables.............ceovevrirreenrreseseeernes (13,763)
RECEIVADIES-NEL .......vvicieier s 3,314,862 3,314,862
INVeStMENt SECUMLIES ......ccccvvvvveverercreeere e 198,335 198,335
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries
and associated COMPANIES .......ccvvrvriviveirereenirere e ses 71,348 106,857 $ 35,508
L0 L¢= PPT $3,812,232 $3,847,740 $ 35,508
Short-term DOMTOWINGS ......c.ccvvrieeriiiricineses s $1,330,972 $1,330,972
Current portion of long-term debt............cccoevvninninncee e 109,095 109,095
PaYADIES........cuivereriiiccte et 2,092,102 2,092,102
Long-term debt. 289,464 290,280 $ (807)
L0 PP $3,821,652 $3,822459 $ (807)
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Assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents
The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents approximate fair value because of their short
maturities.

(b) Receivables

The fair values of receivables are measured at the carrying values because the collection term is
short. The allowance for doubtful receivables is computed based on the actual ratio of bad debt in the
past, plus the aggregate amount of estimated losses based on the analysis of certain individual
receivables with recoverable collateral and guarantees. Therefore, the fair values are measured at the
quoted price because the fair values are approximately equal to the values, which are deducted from
the current estimated bad debts from balance sheet accounts. In addition, a portion of receivables
denominated in foreign currencies and hedged by foreign currency forward contracts is translated at
the applicable contract rate.

(c) Marketable and investment securities
The fair values of marketable and investment securities are measured at the quoted market price of
the stock exchange for the equity instruments, and at the quoted price obtained from the financial
institution for certain debt instruments. Fair value information for marketable and investment
securities by classification is included in Note 3.

Liabilities

(a) Payables and short-term borrowings
The carrying values of payables and short-term borrowings approximate fair value because such
balances are settled in the short term. In addition, a portion of payables denominated in foreign
currencies and hedged by foreign currency forward contracts is translated at the applicable contract
rate.

(b) Long-term debt
The fair values of long-term debt are determined by discounting the cash flows related to the bank

loans at the Group’s assumed corporate borrowing rate.

Derivatives
Fair value information for derivatives is included in Note 12.

(ii) Carrying amount of financial instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably determined

Millions of Yen Thousands of
2015 2014 2015
Investments in equity instruments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market..........cocoeovreerrrrerreirennns ¥ 11553 ¥ 10024 $ 96,138
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated
companies that do not have a quoted market price in an active market..... 21,412 22,051 178,180




12. DERIVATIVES

(5) Maturity analysis for financial assets and securities with contractual maturities

Millions of Yen
Due in 1 Year or Due after 1 Year Due after 5 Years
March 31 4 2015 Less through 5 Years through 10 Years Due after 10 Years
Cash and cash equivalents ...........ccccoovvereeiinnnns ¥ 27,359
RECEIVADIES .....cecveveecriicrieecee e 400,001
TOtAl ... ¥ 427,361
Millions of Yen
Due in 1 Year or Due after 1 Year Due after 5 Years
March 31,2014 Less through 5 Years through 10 Years  DUe after 10 Years
Cash and cash equivalents ...........cccceevvererereennne ¥ 26,027
RECEIVADIES ........cvcveverivieiiccetereeee et 387,042
TOtAl ... ¥ 413,069
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Due in 1 Year or Due after 1 Year Due after 5 Years
March 31 4 2015 Less through 5 Years through 10 Years Due after 10 Years
Cash and cash equivalents ...........ccccocovveveeeinnnns $ 227,669
Receivables . 3,328,626
Total $ 3,556,303

Please see Note 7 for annual maturities of long-term debt.

The Group enters into foreign currency forward contracts in the normal course of business to hedge
foreign exchange risk associated with certain assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.
The Group enters into interest rate swap agreements as a means of managing its interest rate exposures
on certain liabilities. Interest rate swaps effectively convert some floating rate debt to a fixed basis, or
convert some fixed rate debt to a floating basis.

The Group enters into commodity swap agreements as a means of managing the price fluctuation risk of
merchandise that is to be sold at fixed price. Commodity swaps effectively convert some quoted prices to
fixed prices.

It is the Group’s policy to use derivatives only for the purpose of reducing market risks associated with
assets and liabilities.

Derivatives are subject to market risk and credit risk. Market risk is the exposure created by potential
fluctuations in market conditions, including interest or foreign exchange rates. Credit risk is the possibility
that a loss may result from a counterparty’s failure to perform according to the terms and conditions of
the contract. Since most of the Group’s derivative transactions are related to qualified hedges of
underlying business exposures, market gain or loss risk in derivative instruments is basically offset by
opposite movements in the value of the hedged assets or liabilities. Also, because the counterparties to
those derivatives are limited to major financial institutions, the Group does not anticipate any losses
arising from credit risk.

Derivative transactions entered into by the Group have been made in accordance with internal policies,
which regulate the authorization and credit limit amount. The basic policies for the use of derivatives are
approved by the Board of Directors and the execution and control of derivatives are performed by the
Finance Department and monitored by the Corporate Planning Section. Each derivative transaction is
periodically reported to management, where evaluation and analysis of such derivatives are performed.
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Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is not applied

Millions of Yen
March 31, 2015 Contract Amount v R RO FairValue SanLooe
Foreign currency forward contracts:
Selling:
USD e ¥ 421 ¥ 4 ¥ (4)
JPY e 39 1 1
Buying:
usb 2,019 9 9
JPY.. 201 (12) (12)
EUR 3 0) (0)
Currency swaps . 705 ¥ 705 30 30
Total 3,390 ¥ 705 ¥ 23 ¥ 23
Interest rate SWaps........cccovvecenvnceeerrencens ¥ 440 ¥ 440 ¥ 0 ¥ 0
(fixed-rate payment and floating-rate receipt)
Millions of Yen
March 31, 2014 ConvactAmaunt(Fo O FairValue GanLons
Foreign currency forward contracts:
Selling:
USD e ¥ 630 ¥ (14) ¥ (14)
JPY s 49 1 1
Buying
USD . 3,205 85 85
JPY e 158 2 2
EUR oot 32 0 0
CUITENCY SWAPS......cceeeeeeererircreeeieieeseseneeseeeseseseneees 1,014 ¥ 576 50 50
Total.... ¥ 5,091 ¥ 576 ¥ 121 ¥ 121
Interest rate SWapS.......ccocovvvveeeierinsvse e ¥ 411 ¥ 411 ¥ 1 ¥ 1
(fixed-rate payment and floating-rate receipt)
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
March 31,2015 Contract Amount Dizn;ﬁ:rt 8?:32; Fair Value lé:ﬁ?ﬁ;:g
Foreign currency forward contracts:
Selling:
USD .o $ 3,503 $ 33) $ (33)
JPY s 324 8 8
Buying
USD ettt 16,801 74 74
JPY e 1,672 (99) (99)
EUR oo 24 0) (0)
CUITENCY SWAPS ....vvveveveririsesesreterereressesessesesesesenens 5,866 $ 5,866 249 249
TOtAl oo $ 28210 $ 5866 $ 191 $ 191
Interest rate SWapS........ccovvvevvecreeseseeeee s $ 3,661 $ 3,661 $ 0 $ 0

(fixed-rate payment and floating-rate receipt)




Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is applied

Millions of Yen

Contract Amount

March 31, 2015 Hedged Item Contract Amount Due after One Year Fair Value
Foreign currency forward contracts:
Selling: Receivables
USD ..ttt ¥ 13,138 ¥ 58 ¥ (95)
EUR .ot 2,270 45 40
PY s 1,307 2 0
Buying: Payables
USD .ttt 81,572 21,644 542
EUR .ottt 598 (14)
GBP...eeee e 45 0
THB ottt 56 0
AUD. ...ttt 136 (3)
RIVIB ..ottt bbb 96 1
JPY ... 1 0)
Currency swap: Long-term debt
USD ..ttt 4,000 2,000
Currency options:
USD....ooietiiistcees sttt Payables 1,015 7
TOMAL ..o ¥ 104,241 ¥ 23,750 ¥ 478
Interest rate SWaps........cccovvcereernneeeerneees Short-term
. K K borrowings and
(fixed-rate payment and floating-rate receipt) long-term debt ¥ 34470 ¥ 12404 ¥ (94)
ComMOdity SWAPS .....cvvevereriirirerceereeeseseereeesenns Inventories ¥ 1,798 ¥ 646 ¥ (363)
(fixed-price payment and quoted-price receipt)
Millions of Yen
March 31, 2014 Hedged Item Contract Amount D?J%n;ﬁlgrtgnmeowz:r Fair Value
Foreign currency forward contracts:
Selling: Receivables
USD .ttt ¥ 11,688 ¥ (32
EUR ettt 3,524 ¥ 1,423 (239)
PY e —————————————— 1,187 21
RIVIB ..ottt 109 (11)
THB e 5 0)
SGD et 3
HKD .ttt 0 0
Buying: Payables
USD ...ttt 68,537 18,253 125
217 4 4
183 0)
55 (0)
51 2
25 0)
L1 0T 6,000 4,000
Currency options:
USD..oeerree et Payables 28 (0)
AUD.....oiitetes sttt 1 0
TOTA .. ¥ 91620 ¥ 23,681 ¥ (130)
Interest rate SWaps........cccceeeverecrervereiccreiennns Short-term ¥ 28288 ¥ 22488 ¥ (146)
i X K borrowings and
(fixed-rate payment and floating-rate receipt) long-term debt
Commodity SWAP: i Inventories ¥ 401 ¥ 47

(fixed-price payment and quoted-price receipt)
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Thousands of U.S. Dollars

March 31 , 2015 Hedged Item Contract Amount Di%n;?g: Snmeo$get1r Fair Value
Foreign currency forward contracts:
Selling: Receivables
$ 109,328 $ 482 $ (790)
18,889 374 332
10,876 16 0
Buying: Payables
USD..eesece e 678,805 180,111 4,510
0 4,976 (116)
GBP.....eveeeeee e 374 0
THB ..ottt 466 0
AUD..cceseeeeeeeeeeeeseeeesessssssesessssssssseess s 1,131 (24)
RIVB....ooiicee e 798 8
IPY e 8 )
Currency swap: Long-term debt
USD s eseeseeesee e 33,286 16,643
Currency options:
USD...oieeeet e Payables 8,446 58
Total ..o $ 867,446 $ 197,636 $ 3,977
Interest rate SWaps........cccccvevcrnicvicrnicsies Short-term
) . ) borrowings and
(fixed-rate payment and floating-rate receipt)  long-term debt $ 286843 $ 103220 $ (782)
CommoOdity SWaPS .....cceevererrirererereieee e Inventories
(fixed-price payment and quoted-price receipt) $ 1492 $ 5375 $ (3,020)

The fair value of derivative transactions is measured at the quoted price obtained from the financial
institution.

The contract or notional amounts of derivatives which are shown in the above table do not represent the
amounts exchanged by the parties and do not measure the Group's exposure to credit or market risk.

At March 31, 2015, 36.9% of the Company’s issued shares were owned by Nippon Steel & Sumitomo
Metal Corporation (NSSMC), which is principally engaged in manufacturing various kinds of steel products.

As a trading company, the Company purchases products from NSSMC and sells them to customers. The
Company also sells certain materials to NSSMC.

Related party transactions with NSSMC as of and for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, are as
follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of

U.S. Dollars

2015 2014 2015
SAIES ..ottt ¥ 104,004 ¥ 59500 $ 865,473
Purchases.. 782,463 468,515 6,511,300

Millions of Yen Thousands of

2015 2014 2015
Trade receivabIEs..........covvveviveeiirccce e ¥ 21573 ¥ 25396 $ 179,520
Trade PAYaDIES ........ccvvviieeieeeieirirccciete e 27,100 24,985 225,513




14. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

15. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

At March 31, 2015, the Group had the following contingent liabilities:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Trade NOteS diSCOUNTEA...........ceoveueieeeeeeeee e e ¥ 7,803 $ 64,933
Trade NOLES ENAOISEA ........veeueeeeeeriercrcieie e 167 1,389
GUAraNtEES fOr I0ANS.........c.cveveueueeeiiiieieie et aenn 4,314 35,899
Maximum amount of obligations to
repurchase transferred receivables under certain conditions...........c.ccceevvvnenee. 11,356 94,499
TOTAL ...ttt ¥ 23,641 $ 196,729

The components of other comprehensive income for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, were as

follows:
Millions of Yen Thousands of
2015 2014 2015
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities
Gains (losses) arising during the year ¥ 4647 ¥ (308) $ 38,670
Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss (57) (47) (474)
Amount before income tax effect 4,589 (355) 38,187
Income tax effect (1,328) 119 (11,051)
Total ¥ 3,260 ¥ (236) $ 27,128
Deferred loss on derivatives under hedge accounting
Losses arising during the year ¥ (257) ¥ (836) $ (2,138)
Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss 96 140 798
Amount before income tax effect (160) (695) (1,331)
Income tax effect 36 253 299
Total ¥ (123) ¥ (442) $ (1,023)
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Adjustments arising during the year ¥ 5019 ¥ 3358 $ 41,765
Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss 117
Amount before income tax effect 5,019 3,476 41,765
Income tax effect 9 0) 74
Total ¥ 5029 ¥ 3475 $ 41,849
Defined retirement benefit plan(s)
Adjustments arising during the year ¥ 1,547 $ 12,873
Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss 65 540
Amount before income tax effect 1,613 13,422
Income tax effect (536) (4,460)
Total ¥ 1,076 $ 8,953
Share of other comprehensive income in an
unconsolidated subsidiary and associated companies
Gains arising during the year ¥ 2390 ¥ 2,153 $ 19,888
Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss (201) (39) (1,672)
Total ¥ 2,189 ¥ 2114 $§ 18,215
Total other comprehensive income ¥ 11432 ¥ 4,911 $ 95131
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16. SEGMENT INFORMATION

An entity is required to report financial and descriptive information about its reportable segments.
Reportable segments are operating segments or aggregations of operating segments that meet specified
criteria. Operating segments are components of an entity about which separate financial information is
available and such information is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker in deciding
how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. Generally, segment information is required to be
reported on the same basis as is used internally for evaluating operating segment performance and
deciding how to allocate resources to operating segments.

(1) Description of reportable segments

The Group's reportable segments are those for which separate financial information is available and
regular evaluation by the Company's management is being performed in order to decide how
resources are allocated among the Group. Therefore, the Group’s reportable segments consist of the
Steel, Industrial Supply and Infrastructure, Textiles and Foodstuffs segments. Steel consists of various
steel products, construction materials, raw materials and machinery products. Industrial Supply and
Infrastructure consists of industrial machinery, nonferrous metals, cast and forged steel production
and railway wheels. An associated company operates development, sales of industrial park and
generation of electric power. Textiles consists of yarns and fabrics, clothing, bedding, interior items,
uniforms and undergarments. Foodstuffs consists of beef, pork, mutton, chicken and marine products.

(2) Methods of measurement for the amounts of sales, profit (loss), assets and other items for each

reportable segment

The accounting policies of each reportable segment are consistent with those disclosed in Note 2,
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.”

(3) Information about sales, profit (loss), assets and other items

Millions of Yen
2015
Industrial Supply
Steel and Textiles Foodstuffs Others Reconciliations Consolidated
Sales: Infrastructure
Sales to external CUSLOMETS .........ccuvveurieeneeereeseseee s ¥1,679,687 ¥ 92,498 ¥ 178,174 ¥ 152946 ¥ 1,298 ¥ 2,104,606
Intersegment sales or transfers..............cocvevcvcvcnincninisinnnns 703 2,382 3 250 ¥ (3,34)

TOMAL ..o ¥1,680,391 ¥ 94,881 ¥ 178,178 ¥ 152946 ¥ 1549 ¥ (3,341) ¥2,104,606
SegMENt Profit ..o ¥ 20672 ¥ 3112 ¥ 3672 ¥ 2976 ¥ 135 ¥ 4 ¥ 30573
SEYMENT ASSELS. ...t 499,678 54,687 85,935 39,763 5,299 7,535 692,899

Other:

DEPreCiatioN.........coeveveecceereecee s 3,151 472 1,336 202 12 5,176
Amortization of gOOAWIll...........ccereieriiriieceeeeceee 47 138 21 206
INEErESE INCOME ... 358 )| 34 32 1 (46) 422
INTErESt EXPENSE. ... .ottt 2,093 109 321 113 32 (40) 2,630
Equity in earnings (losses) of an unconsolidated subsidiary and

associated COMPANIES .......ccovvvveereeereeerereresiseeeere e seseseeeeees 839 931 (781) 990
Investments under the equity method..........ccccoevveiiveeiececiennns 9,958 17,361 299 27,620
Increase in property, plant and equipment

and intangible aSSetS ..........ocoviieieirireriieee 5,139 565 1,216 279 17 7,218
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Millions of Yen
2014
Industrial Supply
Steel and Textiles Foodstuffs Others Reconciliations Consolidated
Sales: Infrastructure
Sales 10 external CUSIOMENS ........cccvvvveeereeeririrseee et ¥1,033,444 ¥ 98,816 ¥ 183,873 ¥ 126,325 ¥ 1,383 ¥1,443,843
Intersegment sales Or transfers .........c.cocvvvveeerrereeeesreeeenn 872 1,898 1 171 ¥ (2,943)

TOMAl ..o s ¥1,034,317 ¥ 100,714 ¥ 183,875 ¥ 126,325 ¥ 1554 ¥ (2,943) ¥1,443843
Segment profit (I0SSES)......cvvvvererrerererereiereris e ¥ 12394 ¥ 2494 ¥ 4206 ¥ 2,752 ¥ (23) ¥ 6 ¥ 21,830
SEGMENTE ASSELS......ecveveeciecee e 464,804 53,189 80,090 33,489 5,438 5,290 642,304

Other:
DEPreCiation.........cceveierrreeee e 2,439 116 639 191 17 3,405
Amortization of gOOAWIll ...........coveeuieemrierriercreeeees 59 54 21 135
INTErESE INCOME ... 213 89 35 47 4 (24) 366
INTErESt EXPENSE.....vviveeeieetetete et 1,272 91 362 130 48 (24) 1,881
Equity in earnings of an unconsolidated subsidiary and

associated COMPANIES ........covvveverereeerererereseeeeere e 473 748 (465) 755
Investments under the equity method 12,354 10,570 279 23,203
Increase in property, plant and equipment

and intangible asSets .........ccocoveeveveeeeicecs e 5,162 744 1,329 299 131 7,666

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2015
Industrial Supply
Steel and Textiles Foodstuffs Others Reconciliations Consolidated
Sales: Infrastructure
Sales to external customers $13,977,590 $ 769,726 $1,482,682 $1,272,746 $ 10,801 $17,513,572
Intersegment sales or transfers 5,850 19,821 24 2,080 $ (27,802

Total $13,983,448 $ 789,556 $1,482,716 $1,272,746 $ 12890 $ (27,802) $17,513,572
Segment profit $ 172022 $ 25896 $ 30556 $ 24764 $ 1,23 $ 33 § 254414
Segment assets 4,158,092 455,080 715,111 330,889 44,095 62,702 5,765,989

Other:
Depreciation 26,221 3,927 1,117 1,680 99 43,072
Amortization of goodwill 391 1,148 174 1,714
Interest income 2,979 341 282 266 8 (382) 3,511
Interest expense 17,416 907 2,671 940 266 (332) 21,885
Equity in earnings (losses) of an unconsolidated subsidiary and

associated companies 6,981 7,747 (6,499) 8,238
Investments under the equity method 82,865 144,470 2,488 229,841
Increase in property, plant and equipment

and intangible assets 42,764 4,701 10,118 2,321 141 60,064

Notes for the year ended March 31, 2015
(a) "Other" represents operating segments that are not included in a reportable segment, consisting of
real estate and other transactions.
(b) The reconciliation in segment profit of ¥4 million ($33 thousand) represents the elimination of

intersegment trades.

(c) The reconciliation in segment assets of ¥7,535 million ($62,702 thousand) represents the result of
elimination of intersegment trades of ¥1,126 million ($9,370 thousand) and the Group’s assets of
¥8,662 million ($72,081 thousand) that are not included in a reportable segment. The Group’s
assets mainly consist of cash and cash equivalents of the Company.

(d) Items causing the difference between the aggregated amounts of segment profit of reportable
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segments and others, and income before income taxes and minority interests in the consolidated
financial statements include mainly the following:

¥1,709 million ($14,221 thousand) of impairment losses of fixed assets, which is included in other
income (expenses)

¥214 million ($1,780 thousand) of loss on valuation of investments in capital, which is included in
other income (expenses)

Notes for the year ended March 31, 2014

(a) "Other" represents operating segments that are not included in a reportable segment, consisting of
real estate and other transactions.

(b) The reconciliation in segment profit or loss of ¥6 million represents the elimination of intersegment
trades.

(c) The reconciliation in segment assets of ¥5,290 million represents the result of elimination of
intersegment trades of ¥2,360 million and the Group’s assets of ¥7,651 million that are not
included in a reportable segment. The Group’s assets mainly consist of cash and cash equivalents
of the Company.

(d) Items causing the difference between the aggregated amounts of segment profit or loss of
reportable segments and others, and income before income taxes and minority interests in the
consolidated financial statements include mainly the following:
¥11,731 million of gain on negative goodwill, which is included in other income (expenses)
¥1,170 million of office transfer expenses, which is included in other income (expenses)
¥634 million of impairment losses of fixed assets, which is included in other income (expenses)
¥342 million of loss on liquidation of subsidiaries and affiliates, which is included in other income
(expenses)
¥397 million of loss on devaluation of investment securities, which is included in other income
(expenses)

(4) Information about products and services
See operating segments information above because the reportable segments are determined on the
basis of products and services.



(5) Information about geographical areas

(i) Sales
Millions of Yen
2015
Japan Asia Others Total
¥ 1,551,272 ¥ 463,267 ¥ 90,066 ¥ 2,104,606
Millions of Yen
2014
Japan Asia Others Total
¥ 1,147,395 ¥ 240,232 ¥ 56,214 ¥ 1,443,843
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2015
Japan Asia Others Total
$12,908,978 $ 3,855,096 $ 749,488 $17,513,572
Sales are classified by country or region based on the location of customers.
(ii) Property, plant and equipment
Millions of Yen
2015
Japan Asia Others Total
¥ 39,235 ¥ 15,349 ¥ 8,424 ¥ 63,009
Millions of Yen
2014
Japan Asia Others Total
¥ 37,874 ¥ 10,783 ¥ 7,645 ¥ 56,303
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2015
Japan Asia Others Total
$ 326,495 $ 127,727 $ 70,100 $ 524,332

(6) Information about major customers
Information about major customers is not disclosed because there was no single external customer
who accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenues for the years ended March 31, 2015 and

2014.
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(7) Impairment losses of assets are as follows:

Millions of Yen
2015
Industrial Supply
Steel and Textiles Foodstuffs Others Reconciliations Total
Infrastructure
Impairment 10SSeS Of @SSELS.......ccvvvveerererrrrereee s ¥ 1,529 ¥1 ¥ 173 ¥4 ¥ 1,709
Millions of Yen
2014
Industrial Supply
Steel and Textiles Foodstuffs Others Reconciliations Total
Infrastructure
Impairment 10SSeS Of @SSELS........cccveveverereeiee e ¥ 112 ¥ 522 ¥ 634
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2015
Industrial Supply
Steel and Textiles Foodstuffs Others Reconciliations Total
Infrastructure
Impairment 10SSeS Of @SSELS.........cevecviecricieeee e $ 12,723 $8 $ 1,439 $ 33 $ 14,221
(8) Amortization of goodwill and goodwill are as follows:
Millions of Yen
2015
Industrial Supply
Steel and Textiles Foodstuffs Others Reconciliations Total
Infrastructure
Amortization 0of OOAWIll .........c.cvvriirerirrrireeeerreee s ¥ 47 ¥ 138 ¥21 ¥ 206
GOOAWIL ... 183 5 189
Millions of Yen
2014
Industrial Supply
Steel and Textiles Foodstuffs Others Reconciliations Total
Infrastructure
Amortization of goodwill ¥ 59 ¥ 54 ¥ 21 ¥ 135
GOOAWIIL ... 3 109 26 139
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2015
Industrial Supply
Steel and Textiles Foodstuffs Others Reconciliations Total
Infrastructure
Amortization of gOOAWIll ...........cccevivriieiieeecece e $ 391 $ 1,148 $ 174 $ 1,714
GOOUWIIL ... esseeeenees 1,522 a1 1,572

(9) Information about negative goodwill by segment
Not applicable for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015

Gain on negative goodwill of ¥11,670 million arising from the merger for the year ended March 31,
2014, is not presented because it was not allocated to any reportable segments.
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Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
NIPPON STEEL & SUMIKIN BUSSAN CORPORATION:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of NIPPON STEEL & SUMIKIN
BUSSAN CORPORATION and its consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2015, and the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, all expressed in Japanese yen.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of NIPPON STEEL & SUMIKIN BUSSAN
CORPORATION and its consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2015, and the consolidated results
of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Japan.

Convenience Translation

Our audit also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts
and, in our opinion, such translation has been made in accordance with the basis stated in Note 1
to the consolidated financial statements. Such U.S. dollar amounts are presented solely for the
convenience of readers outside Japan.

Qe boctte Trnoha. Totmee |1C

June 23, 2015
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Corporate Data

(As of March 31, 2015)

Date of Establishment
August 2, 1977

Tokyo Head Office

5-27, Akasaka 8-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo 107-8527
TEL: 81-3-5412-5001

FAX: 81-3-5412-5101

Number of Employees
1,479

Number of Subsidiaries and Associated Gompanies
129 and 48
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